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Introduction

1.1 	This Invitation to Tender (ITT) has been prepared by Kents Hill and Monkston Parish Council (KHMPC) for the purpose of inviting proposals from your organisation and others for the provision of the services described in the Specification at section 3 of this document.

1.2 	In order for you to bid for this contract you are required to submit a Proposal explaining how you will meet KHMPC’s requirements described in the Specification in section 3 of this ITT.  Your proposal should follow the format described and answer the specific questions in section 4 of this ITT. The tender process will be conducted in a manner that ensures tenders are evaluated fairly against weighted criteria set out in section 5 of this ITT.  You must use the pricing schedule in section 6 to explain how you will charge for the work you do.  You will need to prove that you have the type and amount of insurance cover described in section 7.  You also need to complete and return the Statement of Non-Collusion and the Form of Tender in section 8.

2. [bookmark: _Toc56503433]Instructions to Tenderers

2.1 	Please read the instructions on the tendering procedures carefully.  Failure to comply with them or to return any of the required documents or information may invalidate your tender which must be returned by the date and time given below.

Questions about this ITT

2.2 	You may submit, by no later than 1700hrs on Friday 27th November 2020, any queries that you have relating to this ITT.  Please submit such queries by email to:

Abi Bassett (Parish Clerk)
Email:  clerk@kentshill-monkston-pc.org.uk

2.3 	Any specific queries should clearly reference the appropriate paragraph in the documentation and, to the extent possible, should be aggregated rather than sent individually.  As far as is reasonably possible, KHMPC will respond to all reasonable requests for clarification of any aspect of this ITT and supporting documents in accordance with the following paragraph, provided they are received before the above deadline.  No queries received after the above deadline will be answered.

2.4 	Answers to questions received by KHMPC will be circulated by email on or before 1700hrs on Wednesday 6th December 2020 to all bidders (without revealing the identity of the individual bidder that put forward a particular question).

Variant Bids

2.5 	You are encouraged to be innovative in your thinking when preparing your bid and to provide any suggestions and solutions that may provide a more cost effective and value for money solution.  Any such proposal which alters the requirements of the specification must be in the form of a variant bid, must be clearly marked ‘variant bid’, and must be submitted at the same time as the fully compliant bid requested in this ITT.

Summary of Procurement Timetable.

2.6	The following is a summary of the timetable that applies to this procurement.  KHMPC reserves the right to alter this timetable by notice to tenderers.

	Event
	Deadline/Comment

	Confirmation of receipt of this document 
	Email confirmation: Within two working days of receipt of this document.

	Deadline for receipt by KHMPC of queries about ITT
	
1700hrs on Friday 27th November 2020

	
KHMPC circulation of responses to queries
	
1700hrs on Wednesday 6th December 2020

	
Deadline for receipt of tenders.
	 
1700hrs on Tuesday 15th December 

	
KHMPC to notify tenderers
	By 1700hrs on Tuesday 22nd December 2020

	

Contract implementation date 
	1st April 2021 – 30th March 2024 with possible extension of up to two (2) years, by mutual agreement



Instruction for Return of Tenders

2.7 	Please submit one hard copy and one electronic copy of your tender, by post/email no later than 1700hrs on Tuesday 15th December 2020 to:

Abi Bassett
Parish Clerk
Kents Hill and Monkston Parish Council
P O Box 6293
Milton Keynes MK10 1ZG
clerk@kentshill-monkston-pc.org.uk

2.8	Late tenders will not be considered unless KHMPC is satisfied that the delay was caused by reasons outside of your control.

2.9	Envelopes and packages used to return tenders must bear no reference to the tenderer by name; franking machines which automatically print your organisations name should not be used.  Tenders will be received up to the time and date stated.  
Those received before the due date will be retained unopened until then.  It is your responsibility to ensure that your tender is delivered not later than the appointed time.

2.10	Following the selection of the preferred supplier KHMPC will provide unsuccessful tenderers with the reasons for its decision.

Checklist of documents to be returned

2.11	You are required to return the following documents as part of your tender:
(a)	your tender Proposal, this including the answers to the specific questions in section 4 of this ITT
(b)	the Pricing Schedule in section 6
(c)	copies of the insurance documents listed in section 7
(d)	the completed and signed Statement of Non-Collusion in section 8
(e)	the completed and signed Form of Tender also in section 8

Freedom of Information and Transparency

2.12	The Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOIA) and the Environmental Information Regulations 2004 (EIR) apply to KHMPC. You should be aware of KHMPC’s obligations and responsibilities under FOIA and EIR to disclose, on written request, recorded information held by KHMPC.  Information provided by you in connection with this procurement exercise, or with any contract that may be awarded as a result of this exercise, may therefore have to be disclosed by KHMPC in response to such a request, unless KHMPC decides that one of the statutory exemptions under the FOIA or the exceptions in the EIR applies.  If you wish to designate information supplied as part of this response as confidential, or if you believe that its disclosure would be prejudicial to any person’s commercial interests, you must provide clear and specific detail as to the precise information involved.  Such designation alone may not prevent disclosure if in KHMPC’s reasonable opinion publication is required by applicable legislation or Government policy or where disclosure is required by the Information Commissioner or the First-tier Tribunal (Information Rights).

Warnings/Disclaimers

2.14	Offering an inducement of any kind in relation to obtaining this or any other contract with KHMPC will disqualify your tender from being considered and may constitute a criminal offence.

2.15	You must not:
(a)	tell anyone else what your tender price is or will be, before the time limit for delivery of tenders
(b)	try to obtain any information about anyone else’s tender or proposed tender before the time limit for delivery of tenders; or
(c)	make any arrangements with another organisation about whether or not they should tender, or about their or your tender price.

2.16	Failure to comply with any of these conditions may disqualify your tender.
2.17	Nothing contained in this ITT or any other communication made between KHMPC or its representatives and any person shall constitute an agreement, contract, or representation (except for the formal written contract between KHMPC and its preferred supplier).  Receipt by the tenderer of this ITT does not imply the existence of a contract or commitment by or with KHMPC for any purpose and tenderers should note that this ITT may not result in the award of any business.

2.18	It is the responsibility of tenderers to obtain for themselves at their own expense all additional information necessary for the preparation of their response to this ITT.  No claim of insufficient knowledge will be entertained.

2.19	The information contained in this ITT and the supporting documents and in any related written or oral communication is believed to be correct at the time of issue but KHMPC will not accept any liability for its accuracy, adequacy or completeness and no warranty is given as such.  This exclusion does not extend to any fraudulent misrepresentation made by or on behalf of KHMPC.

2.20	KHMPC reserves the right to change any aspect of, or cease, the tender process at any time.

2.21	By issuing this ITT, KHMPC is not bound in any way and does not have to accept the lowest or any tender.

2.22	You will not be entitled to claim from KHMPC any costs or expenses which you may incur in preparing your tender whether or not your tender is successful and regardless of whether a contract is awarded.

Tender Validity

2.23	Your tender should remain open for acceptance of a period of 90 days from the last date for receipt of tenders which expires at midnight on 28th February 2021.  A tender valid for a shorter period may be rejected.

Consortia Bids

2.24	If you are bidding for this contract in association with another supplier you must explain the structure of your bid.  Failure to do so may lead to your bid being disqualified.  For example if you are bidding as a lead supplier you must explain how the other supplier involved with you will support you, and take over responsibility for performing the contract in the event that for some reason you are unable to continue.  If you are intending to bid as consortium and establish a new legal entity to perform the contract please give full details of how that entity will be constituted, including its legal status, who will own it and in what proportions.  KHMPC may require cross guarantees to be provided by all members of the consortium.


3. [bookmark: _Toc56503434]The Specification

3.1 	Parish Council Background

[bookmark: _Hlk52880095]KHMPC is a first tier local authority located in the Kents Hill, Monkston & Brinklow Ward of the unitary authority served by Milton Keynes Council.  Over a number of years, the Parish Council has installed dog waste and litter bins throughout the parish to service the local community where such facilities have not been provided by Milton Keynes Council.  The purpose of this tender is to select a supplier who will provide emptying and repair/replacement services for Parish Council owned bins only on a regular basis.  Our aim is to represent the interests of our local community, always striving to improve their quality of life and local environment and to deliver value for money for our community.

The Parish is made up of the following areas:
· Kents Hill
· Monkston Park
· Monkston
· Kingston
· Brinklow

(a) The bins are to be emptied on a weekly basis at a time that provides least inconvenience to our residents.

(b) Details on percentage volumes removed for each bin must be provided on a monthly basis.

(c) Any defects with the bins must be reported immediately to the Parish Council

(See Appendix 01 (Draft Contract) for full service delivery specification) 

Current Service Delivery

3.2 	The Parish Council currently has:

22 Litter Bins emptied once a week, twice if required.
35 Dog Bins emptied twice a week.

4. [bookmark: _Toc56503435]Format of Tender Proposal/Questions for bidders

Format of Proposals

4.1	Please respond in full to each of the questions for bidders set out below to allow KHMPC to make an informed selection of the most appropriate solution.  You should repeat the question in your Proposal and then include your answer.

4.2	Please reply to all the questions even if you have previously provided this information.  This is to ensure that KHMPC can compare each of the options and the suppliers in a fair, like-for-like and reasonable manner.  If a question is similar to a question included elsewhere in the questionnaire, you should repeat your response where relevant and expand upon it where necessary.

4.3	Please outline costs as requested in section 6 below, providing a breakdown of the costs.

4.4	Please also ensure that you indicate in your bid if you are reliant on any third parties for any aspects of fulfilling the service as specified, or if this is a consortia bid (see paragraph 2.24 above).  In such cases you should provide full details of subcontractors and partners, the nature of the relationship and the intended balance of work to be completed, and copies of quality assurance arrangements operating with subcontractors.

4.5	Please submit your Proposal:
(a)	written in English
(b)	in hard and electronic copy – where possible printed on recycled paper and double sided.

4.6	Please number every page sequentially in the main body of your Proposal and include the date and title of your document on each page of the main body.

4.7	Any additional pre-existing material which may expand upon your Proposal should be included as appendices with cross-references to this material in the main body of your Proposal.

4.8	While promotional material may be included or referred to in your Proposal, you are asked not to include it in substitution of responding fully to all questions.

Questions for bidders:

i. Objectives and Approach:
The objective is to ensure that our litter and dog bins are serviced adequately throughout the month, how will you approach this?

ii. Experience/Expertise (Service Delivery)
(a) What experience and expertise do you have in the service industry?
(b) What experience has the company gained of dealing with similar contracts? 
(c) Details on average size of contracts undertaken previously. 
(d) Details of reference sites of comparable size and sector type.

iii. Stakeholder Engagement
Who are your stakeholders and how do you get their engagement?

iv. Survey Work
Have you done any survey work before and if so, how have you gone about this?



v. Staffing
(a) What is your staffing level currently and how will you ensure that appropriate service levels are met should you gain new customers?
(b) What contingency provisions are in place if delivery difficulties arise?
(c) Is sub-contracting likely to be involved? If so, what proportion of work will be involved? 

vi. Risk Management
Do you have a risk management policy, if so, how do you implement this?

vii. Reporting
(a) What management reporting do you offer?
(b) Do you have an online reporting tool for 
(c) notification of location of any broken bins that need maintenance or replacement?

viii. Contractual Compliance
(a) Do you have a Waste Carrier Licence? (please provide a copy).
(b) Where is the waste disposal you use and does this comply with the regulations for such waste?

ix. References
Can you provide references from existing customers within Milton Keynes? (three if possible)

x. Continuous improvement plans
What is your company policy on making improvements to your services, innovation and added value?

xi. Quality Assurance
Do you have any accreditations such as ISO9000 etc? If so, please provide copies.

xii. Financial Strength
Please include your company’s revenue and net results for the last two years with your response (please include your company’s registration number and registered address in your response).

xiii. Equalities
In the last three years, have any findings of unlawful discrimination been made against you or your firm by the Employment Tribunal, the Employment Appeal Tribunal or any other court or in comparable proceedings in any other jurisdiction?  If so, please give details.

4.8.14 Do you have an equalities policy? If not, how do you ensure that you comply with the relevant law?

4.8.15 Provide copies of the following:
· Public liability insurance certificate.
· Health & Safety Certificate
· Complaint Procedure


5 [bookmark: _Toc56503436]Evaluation Criteria and Weightings

5.1	Proposals will be evaluated by attaching a score to:

(a)	the quality of the proposal overall against the following criteria:

· Overall understanding of the work required
· Value for money
· Ability to deliver the service; and

(b)	the responses to the questions for bidders listed in section 4 above.

5.2	Scores will be awarded between 0 and 5 as follows:

	0 = Unacceptable
	1 = Unsatisfactory – below requirement
	2 = Weak – well below requirement
	3 = Mostly meets the requirement
	4 = Good – completely meets the standard with moderate levels of assurance
5 = Outstanding – completely meets the standard with high levels of assurance

5.3	Weightings are given to each of the criteria and questions that are scored.  Your total score will be determined by the aggregate of the scores for each question once multiplied by the applicable weighting.

	Criteria
	Weighting

	Overall understanding of the work required
	
20%

	Cost & Value for Money
	50%

	Ability to deliver the service
	15%

	Questions  
(4.8.1 to 4.8.15)
	
15%



(See Appendix 02 for the Evaluation Form)


[bookmark: _Toc56503437]6. Pricing Schedule
It is known that where a new post is required adjacent to any land known as Highway land and which falls under the control of Milton Keynes Council, that a Highways Licence to carry out any works will be required. KHMPC will provide this so please exclude any reference from your quote. Please supply your quote for the supply and installation of the requisite post, bin and any fixings.

6.1	All pricing should be in pound sterling (£GBP).

Summary of costs

Company Name: ________________________________


Emptying of Dog Waste Bins (per bin)

First visit per week								£

Any subsequent visits per week						£

[bookmark: _Hlk52875050]Removal of extra bags left near bin (state size)				£


Emptying of Litter Bins (per bin)

First visit per week								£

Any subsequent visits per week						£

Removal of any extra bags left near bin					£


Cost of Replacement Bins

Supply of dog bin								£

Fitting of dog bin								£

Supply of litter bin								£

Fitting of litter bin								£


Repair of Bins

Replacement brackets (per bin)						£

Re-fix to solid base/footpath						£

Concreting bin in								£
(Examples of existing dog/litter bins)

[image: A black litter bin at a children's play area][image: A black litter bin next to a green field][image: A red dog waste bin on a post in a field][image: A red, plastic dog waste bin on a post in a residential area]

 


6.2	Costs should be quoted exclusive of output VAT.  Please confirm this in your pricing schedule.

7. [bookmark: _Toc56503438]Evidence of Insurance

7.1	Please enclose documentary evidence to show that you have the following types and amounts of insurance cover.  This should be a copy of the relevant policy together with proof of payment of the current years’ premium.

(a) Employers Liability Cover – minimum cover £5 million
(b) Public Liability Insurance Cover – minimum cover £2 million per claim
(c) Professional Indemnity Insurance – minimum cover £2 million for claims arising from a single event or series of related events in a single calendar year.


8. [bookmark: _Toc56503439]Statement of non-collusion and form of tender


Statement of no collusion

To

[Supplier name and address]

1. We recognise that the essence of competitive tendering is that KHMPC will receive a bona fide competitive tender from all persons tendering.  We therefore certify that this is a bona fide tender and that we have not fixed or adjusted the amount of the tender or our rates and prices included therein by or in accordance with any agreement or arrangement with any other person.

2. We also certify that we have done and undertake not to do at any time before the hour and date specified for the return of this tender any of the following acts:

(a) Communicate to any person other than KHMPC the amount or approximate amount of our proposed tender, except where the disclosure, in confidence, of the approximate amount is necessary to obtain any insurance premium quotation required for the preparation of the tender

(b) Enter into any agreement or arrangement with any other person that he shall refrain for submitting a tender or as to the amount included in the tender

(c) Offer or pay or give or agree to pay or give any sum of money, inducement or valuable consideration directly or indirectly to any person doing or having done or causing or having caused to be done, in relation to any other actual or proposed tender for the contract any act, omission or thing of the kind described above.

3. In this certificate, the word “person” shall include any person, body or association corporate or unincorporated; and “any agreement or arrangement” includes any such information, formal or informal, whether legally binding or not.

___________________________________________________________________
Signature (duly authorised on behalf of the Tenderer)


Print name


Bursar or other duly authorised officer for and on behalf of the Tenderer


[Date]

Form of Tender

To

[Supplier name and address]

1. Having considered the invitation to tender and all accompanying documents (including without limitation, the terms and conditions of contract and the specification) we confirm that we are fully satisfied as to our experience and ability to deliver the goods/services in all respects in accordance with the requirements of this invitation to tender.

2. We hereby tender and undertake to provide and complete all the goods/services required to be performed in accordance with the terms and condition of contract and specification for the amount set out in the Pricing Schedule.

3. We agree that any insertion by us to any conditions qualifying this tender or any unauthorised alteration to any of the terms and conditions of contract made by us may result in the rejection of this tender.

4. We agree that this tender shall remain open to be accepted by KHMPC for 90 days from the last date for the receipt of tenders.

5. We understand that if we are a subsidiary (within the meaning of section 1159 of (and schedule 6 to) the Companies Act 2006) if requested by KHMPC we may be required to secure a Deed of Guarantee in favour of KHMPC from our holding company or ultimate holding company, as determined by KHMPC in their discretion.

6. We understand that KHMPC is not bound to accept the lowest or any tender it may receive.

7. We certify that this is a bona fide tender.



Signature (duly authorised on behalf of the Tenderer)


Print name


Bursar or other duly authorised officer for and on behalf of Tenderer


[bookmark: _Toc413413746]Date
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